MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

February 26, 2019

MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Sara Countryman declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.

Present:

Sara Countryman

Mayor

Jon Bickford

City Council Place # 1

John Champagne, Jr.

City Council Place # 2

T.J. Wilkerson

City Council Place # 3

Rebecca Huss

City Council Place # 4

Tom Cronin

City Council Place # 5

Absent:

Also Present: Jack Yates

City Administrator

Larry Foerster

City Attorney

Susan Hensley

City Secretary

Chris Roznovsky

City Engineer

INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the Invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time allowed per speaker may be limited.

Mr. Emanuel Gloksin and Mr. Larry Jacobs, who had both requested to speak stated they wanted to speak on their related Agenda Items when they come before City Council.

CONSENT AGENDA:

- 1. <u>Matters related to the approval of minutes of the Public Hearings and Regular Meeting held on February 12, 2019.</u>
- 2. <u>Consideration and possible action regarding Certificate of Acceptance of the 18" Gravity Sanitary</u>
 Sewer Extension Phase I Project.

Rebecca Huss stated she had a comment regarding the minutes, that was not a problem with the content, it was related to a factual item. Rebecca Huss said there is a comment about the budgeted item for the streets, and said in the minutes Mr. Yates stated that it was \$200,000 and looking at the financial report it is closer to \$100,000. John Champagne asked if that was correct. Mr. Yates said it was originally \$129,000. Rebecca Huss said that was the amount in the budget as reported to City Council. John Champagne said he remembered reading that it was \$200,000. Mr. Yates said that was correct. Rebecca Huss said that it was a matter of factuality of something that was stated at the last City Council Meeting, which might stick in their minds about the amount of funds that they have to spend on that line item. Rebecca Huss said \$200,000 is a big difference from \$129,000.

Mayor Countryman asked if they needed to make a change to the information. Rebecca Huss said no, it was just an editorial comment for the record. Ms. Hensley advised the information would be reflected in these minutes.

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Consent Agenda as presented. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

- 3. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports.
 - A. Administrator's Report
 - Presentation regarding the State of the Community Report and Comprehensive Plan Community Meeting scheduled to be held on Thursday, February 28, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall by Walter Peacock.

Mr. Yates introduced Walter Peacock, with Texas A&M University, who is working on the City of Montgomery Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Mr. Peacock advised that he was present to remind everyone that they would be having a meeting on Thursday,

February 28, 2019 and to make sure that the public knows they are invited to attend the meeting because they need public input. Mr. Peacock said they will start out with the State of the Community that will have a lot of facts about the City of Montgomery, from population to projections, very factual. Mr. Peacock advised when they complete the State of the Community report they will have a participation section for the community to complete that will go through different things that they are wanting to have in the City and the deficits of the City they have to go elsewhere to obtain. Mr. Peacock said the good and bad will be a way of getting the overall idea of how the community feels about the City that they live in. Mr. Peacock said he will take that information and use that to help with the visioning process for the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Peacock said this is a kickoff meeting and will be the first part to get the community involved and recognize the importance of the Comprehensive Plan and what it will mean to the City.

Rebecca Huss asked about the timeline for the rest of the project following the meeting. Mr. Peacock said that he will have to talk to Mr. Yates following this meeting because they will need to set up the rest of the meetings to get community input to go through the visioning and to talk about how they want to structure the downtown area. Mr. Peacock said from this point it is usually about a year to get the whole project completed.

Mr. Yates then presented his report to City Council detailing the meetings and activities for the month, including the Planning and Zoning Commission, Montgomery EDC and the Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Yates said that he also met with FEMA, State Department of Emergency Management where all funds were received except for \$25,000 from FEMA funds that were loaned from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund. Rebecca Huss said that Mrs. Cathy Branco, Financial Consultant, advised that amount was actually \$64,000 that the City was still waiting for. Mr. Yates said that he would clarify that information with Mrs. Branco in the morning.

Mr. Yates said he worked on Atkins Creek. Mr. Yates then advised that he had made the payment to Kroger for the 380 Agreement for last year. Mr. Yates said he met with the Dobbin-Plantersville Water District, and participated in a GLO phone conference where it was confirmed that the City would be receiving a contract for a \$2.1 million dollar project before the end of February. Mr. Yates said he was also working on the Escrow Accounts.

Mr. Yates said he met with several developers during the month regarding property at FM 149 and SH 105, and worked with The Shoppes in Montgomery, and the donut shop property. Mr. Yates said he met with the owner of the Exxon Station regarding the right hand turn lane. Mr. Yates said he worked on coordinating the Police Chief and City Administrator applications process. Mr. Yates advised that he had two meetings regarding a prospective film project in the City; coordinated with the building inspector on demolition by neglect property, assigned/coordinated review of grease trap issues, assisted in the performance of the audit and coordinated the revised billing date of City utility bills to reduce "out-of-sequence" lack of billings. Mr. Yates said he continues to work on the staffengineer question, and met twice with the TORC Committee to continue with determining the cost of sewer system infiltration. Mr. Yates said the TORC Committee will meet again next week.

Rebecca Huss asked Mr. Yates to elaborate on the Dobbin-Plantersville Water District meeting, regarding the point of the meeting and where they are going from here. Mr. Yates said they discussed the plans for the water lines and the boundary lines on the west side of the City. Mr. Yates said what they learned from the meeting was that Dobbin-Plantersville already have 12-inch lines very close to the City, and they are going to be adding more 12inch lines within the next year. Mr. Yates said Dobbin-Plantersville was adding 12-inch lines and the purpose of that is for fire protection, because to provide adequate service, you have to have adequate fire protection. Mr. Yates said he is waiting on a map of the waterlines from Dobbin-Plantersville. Rebecca Huss asked that Mr. Yates forward City Council a copy of the map when it is received. Mr. Yates said he would do that. Mr. Yates said overall the meeting was very productive, and he was very pleased that they were running as many lines up and down Lone Star Parkway and over to the northwest part of the City, which will open that area up for development. Mr. Yates said something that they did discuss was that Dobbin-Plantersville was about to put in a 12-inch line that would get to the old sawmill, which would put them roughly 200 feet away from a connection to the City's line that serves Town Creek. Mr. Yates said that was great news because that is 200 feet the City could probably put in themselves to allow for an emergency connection between the two entities, which is something that has been discussed for several years. Mr. Yates said during their discussion, Dobbin-Plantersville said they lacked a half mile of 12inch lines from where they are now to where they are going to be, which is in front of the Lone Star Parkway and SH 105 intersection. Rebecca Huss asked where they are getting all the funds to lay those lines, because the City does not lay lines until it looks like

somebody is going to connect to the system and have the revenue to pay for the pipes and use the system. Mr. Yates said he did not think anyone asked that question, so he did not know. Jon Bickford asked if they put in their own well. Mr. Yates and the Mayor stated yes, they had their own well. Mayor Countryman said we want to make sure we have a good relationship with our neighbor, which is nice.

John Champagne asked whether the Kroger 380 Agreement payment was up to date. Mr. Yates said yes, and commented the payment was less than what was budgeted. John Champagne asked about the cost of infiltration, and whether they were working on that information. Mr. Yates said that was correct and said he had met with Mr. Randy Burleigh a couple hours ago and they are going to have another meeting. Mr. Yates said they have the cost down to about \$4.00 per 1,000 gallons, but they do not have the precise figures yet. John Champagne asked for the name of the Committee that Mr. Burleigh serves on. Mr. Yates said it was the TORC Committee. John Champagne asked what the chances are that the TORC Committee will be able to present their top three issues or things that they have reviewed over the past few months at the next Council Meeting, and asked if that could be put on the Agenda. Mr. Yates said they could do that.

John Champagne asked about the proposed right lane turn at the property that was just mentioned, and asked how far away they are to getting that going. Mr. Yates said they sent a request to TxDOT a month ago, and he has not heard back yet. Mr. Yates said he knows that he sent the letter to the right person, so it has started the process. John Champagne asked if Dave McCorquodale would assist with this information. Mr. Yates said he advised Dave McCorquodale what he wanted in the letter to TxDOT and then Dave McCorquodale wrote the letter. John Champagne asked if Dave McCorquodale would be following up on the information. Mr. Yates said he had not specifically assigned that duty to Dave McCorquodale. John Champagne said every time he hears of something being followed up on it is being done by Mr. Yates, and he was just wondering.

Mayor Countryman asked about the Samdana property because it seems that they get weekly complaints from residents about the eyesore that it is, and asked if there was a way the City can start writing letters to the owner because it is right on a major thoroughfare. Mr. Yates said the owner will take care of it when someone calls him, and that is something that he could assign Dave McCorquodale. John Champagne asked if the Mayor was talking about the property the City just bought. Mayor Countryman said no, she was talking about

the property across the street where the donut shop is going in. Mr. Yates said when he called the owner before, he took care of the problem. Mayor Countryman asked that they make that phone call because it comes up every week, especially now that festival season is coming up and there will be a lot of visitors.

Mr. Yates commented on the water sewer billing out of sequence, stating that they have been missing a lot of people that turn off their water between the second and fourth week of the month, because when they do that the City has what they called an out of sequence issue with the water billing program. Mr. Yates said other cities have the same sort of issue, but the way other cities have solved it and the way we are going to solve it is to bill one week earlier than what we are currently, which will mean a due date in the middle of the month. Mr. Yates said they will also bill earlier, so it will allow the same amount of time, four or five weeks for people to pay their bills. Mr. Yates said by making that billing change they will close that loop of people that had a week or two of water service that was not getting billed because of the way the program was set up. Mr. Yates said they called other cities and asked them what they were doing, because this has been an issue for quite a while. Jon Bickford asked if anybody had called the software company. Mayor Countryman said they did and they spent two hours on the phone with them. Rebecca Huss said they also have the automatic meter reading, which has changed the need to have such a long period between when they should be reading meters and when the bills are mailed, because, in theory, they can press a button and read everyone's meters and then send the bill out the next day. Rebecca Huss said shortening the cycle makes a lot of sense considering the technological upgrades that have been made. Mr. Yates said it will reduce the cut off period to two to three days at the end of the month rather than two weeks.

B. Public Works Report – Mr. Mike Muckleroy, Director of Public Works presented his report to City Council. Mr. Muckleroy advised they made several repairs at the Water Plants resulting from the Water Plant Inspection conducted by Jones and Carter. Mr. Muckleroy advised the list has been passed on to Gulf Utility Services for the remainder of the repairs. Mr. Muckleroy said he attended the final walk through for the CVS utilities. Mr. Muckleroy advised they replaced a damaged water main on FM 1097 and Atkins Creek. Mr. Muckleroy stated for the month they had nine water taps, seven sewer taps, one water leak and one sewer stoppage. Mr. Muckleroy reported that Fernland docents reported 588 visitors for the month and they provided 44 tours.

John Champagne asked how they derived at the number of visitors to Fernland. Mr. Muckleroy stated that docents provide that information from their tally sheets. John Champagne said he is still wondering how or why the City has not implemented a donation of \$1.00 per person that comes to Fernland, and said it is going to be the City's responsibility to implement that fee. Mr. Muckleroy stated there are donation boxes at Fernland. Jon Bickford said the donations go to a different place. John Champagne asked where the donations go. Mayor Countryman stated they go to Fernland Park Board. John Champagne said they need to change that to non-donations and make it a payment to the City in the amount of \$1.00 per person or whatever fee, but it needs to happen. Jon Bickford said people who attend Fernland put donations in the donation box, the issue is not whether people are donating, but the box is being emptied by the 501C(3), so all they have to do is have the donations come to the City if that is your inclination. John Champagne said yes. Rebecca Huss said she thought that people are more likely to donate if the funds go to a nonprofit organization. Jon Bickford said people like Fernland Park; it is nice and they want to donate to keep it nice. Jon Bickford said the City is paying docents to provide tours at Fernland, and when the tours are done people put money in a box that goes somewhere else. Jon Bickford said he struggles with why the City is paying the docents to provide tours when the donations are going somewhere else. John Champagne said \$6,000 is not a lot money, but it is \$6,000 more than we have now. John Champagne said they have been talking about this for two or three years, and he does not understand why the City can't implement this because it has always been an issue. Mayor Countryman asked if the Historical Society can help take care of Fernland.

John Champagne asked about Mason Street and where the City is regarding paving that street. Mr. Yates said they have a meeting with Commissioner Meador this Friday. John Champagne asked if they were going to pave Caroline Street and Mason Street at the same time. Mr. Yates said he was going to ask City Council if they still wanted to include paving Wade Street, which would be the third street that will cost about \$14,000. John Champagne asked what the criteria was in listing the importance of which streets are getting paved. Mr. Yates said it was the condition of the street. John Champagne asked who was assessing the streets and what criteria are they using. Mr. Muckleroy stated that Mason Street has been on the list for a long time, Wade Street being paved was promised as part of the deal with Mr. Washington, and Caroline Street is just one of the streets when they did their original assessment with a simple 1, 2 and 3 numbering system when they were evaluating during the crack sealing project. Mr. Muckleroy said the area of Caroline Street exceeded

what needed to be done with crack sealing and was beyond repair. John Champagne said that was the answer. Rebecca Huss said Caroline Street has a lot of volume and visibility. Mr. Yates said he was going to ask City Council if they want him to keep all three streets on the list. John Champagne said that was what cities do and said he thought they had established that last week. City Council concurred that they would proceed with all three streets.

Police Department Report - Lieutenant Joe Belmares presented the Police Report to City Council. Lt. Belmares said they had a motor vehicle accident that resulted in a fatality and advised that he has been in constant contact with the family. Lt. Belmares said one of the victims was released from the hospital today, and will have an extensive amount of time in rehab, so they are still working with the District Attorney's Office and Department of Public Safety to finalize the case report so it can be submitted to the District Attorney's Office. Jon Bickford asked if two local people were involved in the accident. Lt. Belmares said three of the victims were out of Grimes County and the defendant was from Montgomery County. Rebecca Huss asked if there was anything that the City could do to structurally mitigate circumstances that led to the accident. Lt. Belmares said he has reached out to the family to give them the information for the Attorney General's Office for victim services that will help them with insurance and medical needs, and helps with cost of living and losses. Rebecca Huss said she was thinking about traffic lights, speed bumps, or ask TxDOT for changes. Lt. Belmares said the City has recently lowered the speed limits that should help, and they have been working with TxDOT on grants and they can do a traffic study and he can ask them about the particulars to get a study done. John Champagne asked what the traffic study would be done on. Lt. Belmares said it would deal with speed and crashes, and information that they provide them throughout the year. John Champagne asked what that would get the City. Lt. Belmares said it would help with the hot spots and help them focus on the areas. John Champagne asked if the Lt. was telling him that he needed TxDOT to tell us where the hot spots are in the City. Lt. Belmares said no, but it would help with the grant funding the City is receiving now. Lt. Belmares said it would show the number of cars coming through the City. John Champagne said they had assessed that at 27,000 the last time, which is a lot of cars and bad things are going to happen.

Lt. Belmares said he has completed the UCR Reports for 2018 and everything checked out well, and he will complete the Racial Profiling Stats by the end of this week, and he is

currently working with DPS Auditors for CJIS Report that he should have completed in a week or so.

Tom Cronin asked if the police patrol Old Plantersville Road on a regular basis out by the high school. Lt. Belmares said they do patrol and they write a lot of citations out there as well. Tom Cronin said he walks that area and he sees speeders every day going at least 60 -70 miles per hour and not the posted 25 miles per hour. Tom Cronin asked if there was a possibility of getting signage regarding littering, and said the reason he was asking was because he picked up three bags of trash in the past two days on Old Plantersville Road going toward Perfection Drive. Tom Cronin said he felt if people were reminded there is a \$500 fine for littering and he was curious what could be done. Lt. Belmares said he could report that information to them and advised they had a recent incident at one of the sites on Old Plantersville Road and one of the officers was able to locate the culprit and the issue was handled outside of criminal charges. Lt. Belmares said definitely call if they find a bag of trash and it belongs to someone. Tom Cronin advised that he had picked up the three bags of trash along his walk route, and he wanted to see if there was a way to remind people, and said the matter the Lt. mentioned was more a private matter. Lt. Belmares said it was a dumpster but it was a criminal offense. Lt. Belmares said he could meet with MISD Chief of Police Runnels and maybe they can put it on their social media about littering and get the information out there.

T.J. Wilkerson asked the Lt. if his department worked with Conroe when they were here with SWAT. Lt. Belmares said Conroe contacted them and let us know that they were going to be in the area, they gave an estimated time and what would be taking place. Lt. Belmares said since it was a SWAT related incident, they work with their team and we will assist if they need us. Jon Bickford asked if that was a drill. Lt. Belmares said it was a real SWAT case. T.J. Wilkerson advised he drove up on them and they shut everything down.

John Champagne said there were 10 days of sessions, seminars and courses, and asked if this was typical. Lt. Belmares said yes it was. John Champagne said his only concern is are we at full force. Lt. Belmares said no, they are still looking for two officers. John Champagne said all he was saying is be a neophyte in terms of police work, and if he was running the Police Department his priority would be people on the street. Lt. Belmares said that is the priority, and said the individuals that went to class, attended them on their days off and a lot of the training was free.

D. <u>Court Department Report</u> – Mrs. Kimberly Duckett, Court Administrator presented her report to City Council. Mrs. Duckett reported in January 2019 the Court went to \$36,756.35; citations collected were 197 for the month.

Rebecca Huss asked how the Court collected that much revenue for the month with that many citations. Mrs. Duckett stated their revenue is not collected only on the citations, there are warrants. Mrs. Duckett said the collection agency has sent out post cards about the pending warrant roundup. Mrs. Duckett said they have sent out notices and they are making phone calls for collections. Rebecca Huss said the warrant numbers are not in the report so they could not tell. Mrs. Duckett said the warrant officer just started a week ago and just compiled his spreadsheet over the past three days and has collected almost \$2,000. John Champagne asked if the City has a warrant officer. Mrs. Duckett advised they do, Officer Trent Lozano who is the part-time warrant officer and will work 20 hours per week and when he is here it is solely phone calls and conducting collections. Rebecca Huss said Officer Lozano worked with the City before as a full-time officer and a reserve officer. Mrs. Duckett said that was correct and said he was very familiar with the system and was learning InCode. Mayor Countryman asked if they were going to have a separate warrant report to show what the Warrant Officer brings in. Mrs. Duckett said yes and he is keeping a tally of the warrants. John Champagne asked who manages Officer Lozano. Mrs. Duckett said she did.

E. <u>Utility/Development Report</u> – Mr. Yates presented the report to City Council, advising last month they collected \$128,872 in utilities, \$30,706 for 89 permits of which 13 were residential. Rebecca Huss said she liked the more in depth breakdown detailing the type of permits being issued and felt it was interesting. Mr. Yates said the Community Building brought in \$645. Mr. Yates said they have 729 active water accounts, which is 15 more than the previous month. Mr. Yates said the arrears is shown on the report and is less than one percent of the monthly billing. Mr. Yates said if you do not pay one time you are almost guaranteed to get on the 60 days category. John Champagne asked if he was reading the arrears correctly on the 120+ days. Mr. Yates said that was correct it goes from 2007 through September 1, 2018. Rebecca Huss asked why they are carrying this on our books. Mr. Yates said he brought this information up the last time they talked about it, and most cities once a year write off their debts, and he would say that they should do it through at least 2016 or 2017. Rebecca Huss said she thought they should at least look at people that

do not live here anymore. John Champagne said he would keep 2018. Mr. Yates said he will try to bring that back for the next City Council Meeting. Jon Bickford said if the Warrant Officer gets time they could get him on this. Mr. Yates said they do need to tighten up their collection process in general.

Rebecca Huss said they fixed the problem on when the account is closed, but they use the deposit to pay for the outstanding balance and then when you pay to reopen your account, they don't put the deposit back in and they have a lot of accounts that do not have actual deposits and asked if they have fixed that problem. Rebecca Huss said to her that is a source for actual potential loss. Rebecca Huss said when they have a cut off and the water deposit is used to pay the outstanding bill, then when they turn the account back on the system does not require a new deposit, which is a problem. Autumn Redman, Utility Billing Clerk advised the issue has been resolved. John Champagne asked when the cutoff date occurs. Mr. Yates said cutoff is at 45 days.

Mr. Yates said under the City's water consumption the only high user is Memory Park. Jon Bickford said this is in some form of gallons. Mr. Yates said yes, it is in thousand gallons. Jon Bickford asked if they could get something that says thousands of gallons. Jon Bickford said he did not understand in January they had so much rain, how they used twice as much water in January than they did in December, and the water consumption at Memory Park is more at 23,000 gallons than everything else on the list combined. Mr. Muckleroy advised the irrigation has been turned off at Memory Park since late October early November. Jon Bickford asked how they used 23,000 gallons of water. Mr. Muckleroy said the number shown is what is going through the meter, and is not necessarily what has gone through the irrigation system. John Champagne asked where it is going. Mr. Muckleroy said they had a pretty good lead there, and the whole system might have taken a lighting strike because it is all messed up. Mr. Muckleroy said they got two sections of the system fixed to get it operational, and they have also been doing some checking on the system to check the efficiency of the system, which could be some of the usage. Mr. Muckleroy said the irrigation system itself has been turned off and that has not changed other than the checking of the system. Mr. Muckleroy said they paid an irrigation company to come in and help us figure out what was going on since they could not get any zones working. Jon Bickford asked if they are running sprinklers at the Community Building. Mr. Muckleroy advised the Community Center irrigation actually includes the restrooms in the back of the building. Mr. Muckleroy said there are two meters at the Community

Center, one feeds the old building, and the other meter feeds the restrooms out back and the irrigation system. John Champagne asked to confirm that lightning might have shorted out the electrical system and it is causing an increase in the reported usage. Mr. Muckleroy said no, checking the system by running it to find out what is going on with the system, along with a leak caused an increase in usage at Memory Park. Mr. Muckleroy advised the Rotary Club has done some work at the Park with new plantings and they ran the water hose to get the plants established. Mr. Muckleroy said the system itself has not been running other than what they manually made it run a couple of days to check the system out. Jon Bickford said that was a lot of water and is about three times the usage by an average household in a month, so that is a big leak.

F. <u>Water Report</u> – Mr. Michael Williams, with Gulf Utility Service, Inc., presented his report to City Council. Mr. Williams reviewed the system alerts, stating there were a number of alters with all but one being weather related. Mr. Williams advised on December 27, 2018, one of the alerts was for low system pressure at Water Plant #3, was one that was not due to weather, it was a contractor that hit a line near Water Plant #3. Mr. Williams said Mr. Muckleroy was able to get it isolated and repaired.

Mr. Williams advised the Waste Water Plant flow detail showed the flow for the month of December through January was 5,610,000 gallons, with the daily peak flow on January 3, 2019 at 568,000 gallons that was 142% of the permitted value. Rebecca Huss said for the record that she has been arguing with Michael and Anthony regarding this number, that only reads two inches, although it shows zero on that day and it rained more than that on December 27, 2018, which showed about 100,000 gallons less, so there is another data point later in the presentation. Rebecca Huss said she does not agree with this number being correct, she still thinks there is something wrong with our measurement, which she has been saying every month, but these numbers are not making sense. John Champagne said they were not consistent. Rebecca Huss said they are getting even more inconsistent than they were, which again is important because A) 142% of the permitted value asks questions about what we are discharging and B) if we are using too much capacity at our sewage treatment plant, it means that we need to build a new one that will cost \$12 million dollars. Rebecca Huss said if we don't actually have enough people flushing A) we will be spending \$12 million dollars we don't have and B) we won't have people actually flushing to pay for it. Rebecca Huss said this is a really important number for the City.

John Champagne asked Mr. Williams to explain the action plan. Mr. Williams said they are meeting with all their infiltration specialists at the Plant on Friday and they are going to go through a number of options to make sure all the equipment is running properly. Mr. Williams said they already do a daily check on it, and from all the data they pulled, it is running properly, but they are going to check some items on the system. Mr. Williams said they will check the temperature controller, which would fluctuate with the different temperatures to help it read better, so they are going to check that out. Mr. Williams said they have discussed alternative metering options, whether it be a recorder that records the accuracy of the meter day and night for a period of time, or manhole flow meters where they can record the flow coming into the Plant. John Champagne asked if Mr. Williams can see the inconsistency in terms of correlation between rain, effluent and measurements or is it just a couple of people on City Council. Mr. Williams said being that they do get to see this across the whole City, that day alone they correlated a peak flow for a number of systems across the City on January 3, 2019 and every single one hit the peak flow that day. Mr. Williams said there are so many factors like duration and intensity of rainfall, and where the infiltration is. Mr. Williams said they actually analyze the rainfall numbers as far as the flow peaking out two to three days after it rained, which tells him there is a soaking factor, where it is soaking into the ground and it is coming back into the system after it has rained. Mr. Williams said on January 3, 2019 they had the peak of January 2, 2019 along with a high wet well call out as well for Lift Station #2, and they stayed out there for a number of hours waiting for the flow to go down so they could reset the system.

Tom Cronin asked Mr. Williams who calibrates his meters. Mr. Williams advised they have an independent contractor that calibrates them and gives them a certification. Tom Cronin asked how they are calibrated, asking if they are meter to meter. Mr. Williams said it is an ultrasonic meter that has a transducer that reads the level of the water. Mr. Williams said when they get their reading they will adjust it, should it not come back exactly in line. Tom Cronin asked if Mr. Williams was confident that the numbers are pretty good. Mr. Williams said yes, he was. Mr. Williams said they are meeting with the contractor on Friday to look at their options to either verify or just prove the liability of this piece of equipment.

John Champagne said they have an ongoing effort trying to find the infusion or incursion into the system. Mr. Williams said yes, the City is conducting ongoing smoke testing. John Champagne asked if they are finding anything. Mr. Muckleroy advised they are

trying to get the true cost of I&I to find out what makes sense as far as how much money they throw at this. Mr. Muckleroy said they were almost at the number, the TORC Committee is working on the actual cost per 1,000 gallons it would cost to treat I&I. John Champagne said if they would just use the percent of capacity of the Sewer Plant, would that not be motivation enough to spend money to find the incursion. Mr. Muckleroy said spending some money, he would agree, but they made a collective agreement to get a true number to see what we really need to spend. John Champagne said in the meantime the clock is ticking. Jon Bickford said it might be helpful to see some different options, such as, 1) they can hire someone to come in and do this all in one day, or 2) they contract out and do some of the work ourselves and that takes two weeks, or 3) we try to do it all ourselves and that takes six months or 4) this is good enough. Jon Bickford said the question is maybe it is time for City Council to look at the options and decide what to do.

John Champagne said he still can't believe we do not have a cost to process sewer in the City and said that was beyond him. John Champagne asked how you can run a business and not know your baseline cost. Rebecca Huss said they do have the cost, using Jones and Carter's numbers it was \$9.73. John Champagne said then that is the cost, so you take that number and multiply it times the incursion of the fluid and that is the City's cost. John Champagne then asked how much they want to spend at that cost. Mr. Muckleroy said he respected what John Champagne was saying, but in his opinion that was not the true cost of I&I. John Champagne asked Mr. Muckleroy what his opinion was based on. Mr. Muckleroy said it was based on several constants that do not change, the operations cost of running the City for a year, which does not change depending on how much rain we get. John Champagne said he understood. Mr. Muckleroy said they are trying to figure out how many constants and variables and I&I. Mr. Muckleroy said they are running about \$4.00 per 1,000 gallons for I&I, not for treating sewer, but for treating the I&I. Mr. Muckleroy said both numbers are going to come out of this, but the number he is talking about is the I&I figure. Jon Bickford said if they look at the daily trend they can calculate the area under the peaks above that and see how much they are getting above and beyond the daily trend, then that is the number they can multiply times the number they come up with to show on average how much extra it is costing per month. Mr. Muckleroy said he attended a free seminar put on by an engineering firm that all they do is I&I and they offered to evaluate the pump lift times, run times, and give a free quick analysis, not anything in depth. Mr. Muckleroy said he understood they are trying to get the City's business, and what they come up with is it looks like the Lift Station #8 area is going to be low hanging

fruit. Mr. Muckleroy said for them to come in and smoke test, manhole inspections and make the necessary recommendations they are looking at \$40,000 for one lift station, which is why this number is important because you don't want to spend \$40,000 on one little area if it is costing us \$20,000 per year. John Champagne said there was another cost and that is exceeding the limit of this sewer plant. Mr. Roznovsky said the number that matters is the average number, not the peak number. Rebecca Huss said the longer the peak number stays high that drives up the average. Mr. Roznovsky said when you have three months at 75% you have to be planning for expansion, and three months at 90% you have to be initiating construction. John Champagne said they are raising the average. Jon Bickford asked to confirm that the three months had to be consecutive. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct, it has to be three consecutive months. Jon Bickford said there is another thing they need to watch and that is the weather. Rebecca Huss said it kind of depends on what is driving it, because if you start looking at the next couple pages of the report, which are pages 57 of the pack, showing August until now, the return numbers go from 28%, which is abnormally low, to 109%, which is ridiculously high, so they start defying logic sometime between 65% and 85%. Rebecca Huss said you have three months in a row at 85%, 87% and 109% and you already have three months in a row and the rain was not heavy during those months, it was 5.6 inches in December. Jon Bickford said that would depend on when the rain comes, if it comes all at once or was it over a period of time. Rebecca Huss said if the meter itself is deteriorating for whatever reason, it does not really matter how much it is raining, because the rain is not actually causing the problem, it is the meter that is causing the problem. Jon Bickford said he would be surprised if it is the meter, and asked if the meter had a spinner in it. Mr. Williams said no, it is completely Mr. Williams said months like this January where they pumped 6.12 million digital. gallons and they had 8.75 inches, that percentage can climb very fast compared to the summer where they pumped 9 million gallons and they had 7 inches of rain, and said some things off set each other to make the percentage jump up really high really fast. Mr. Williams said he has seen on average from their systems across the Houston metropolitan area, they are averaging about 85% during the winter, and they are looking at 40-50% during the summer, which are the typical return numbers that they get. Mr. Williams said each system is different, so they do differ, and he would be glad to supply material. Jon Bickford said that made sense because after October every inch of rain they get saturates the ground and just sits there, and in the summer time it is gone in days. Jon Bickford said they just need to make sure they get their arms around what the peaks are so they don't have three months in a row and get into a problem. Mr. Williams said they will have a

better idea of the direction they want to go to after the meeting this week and see what they can do to double check this meter. Mr. Muckleroy said they talked about getting some rental equipment in. Mr. Williams said it would be good to spend some time and money to double check the numbers before \$10-\$12 million dollars has to be spent.

Mr. Williams said the daily average flow was 181,000 gallons at 45% of the permitted value. Mr. Williams stated all the effluent samples were in compliance for the month of January. Mr. Williams said they did have a number of days when the rain gauge was malfunctioning so it did not record all the rain, but they had a manual rain gauge that they were able to back up the information and they have an accurate 8.75 inches of rain for the month.

Mr. Williams advised they sourced a total of 6.12 million gallons of water, with a flushing number of 607,000 gallons and they sold 5.148 million gallons of water, bringing them to a 94% accountability. Jon Bickford asked if the accountability dropped or did it go up. Mr. Williams said this month it did go up some and said they had a number of leaks that they tried to account for, but that might just be under accounting for some of the leaks. Mr. Williams said they had 607,000 gallons between the normal monthly flushing and one of the district alerts where the contractor hit a line. Mr. Williams said they tried to calculate as best as they could as far as pumpages go to make sure they get as close to that number as possible. Rebecca Huss said the accountability history is on page 56 of the pack. Mr. Williams said the accountability is a little bit higher, they are averaging about 97% so about 3% lower than what they are averaging now, but it should come back up. Mr. Williams said the water sold versus water treated is at 109% water returned to the plant.

G. Engineer's Report – Mr. Roznovsky presented his report to City Council. Mr. Roznovsky advised the waterline across the Buffalo Springs Bridge will be on the agenda for acceptance at the next City Council Meeting. Mr. Roznovsky stated that Lift Station No. 1 replacement will be moving forward to construction, with the goal to have the old Lift Station demolished and everything out of the way by June of this year.

Mr. Roznovsky advised the Baja Road Water and Drainage Improvement project contractor has moved off site because the contractor determined he did not want to be waiting for the weather for the last two weeks so he moved off site and they have a meeting with the contractor tomorrow to discuss his plans to finish the project. Mr. Roznovsky said

when the contractor left the site, he left about 30 feet of ditch on Baja Road full of dirt, since the contractor did not address it Public Works did and we are sending him a bill for that. Mr. Roznovsky said the contractor has had continual issues and that will be discussed at the meeting tomorrow as to how he is going to finish the job and if they are going to finish, and if not, what is the next step. Mayor Countryman asked if the contractor could get out of the contract and can we get someone else. Mr. Roznovsky said he has a bonding company, and he can go that route, he has a performance bond and he is defaulting on that bond, so the bond will cover the contractor coming into place. Mayor Countryman asked whether the City had worked with this contractor in the past. Mr. Roznovsky said they have not worked with him; he had worked in Conroe and the surrounding areas, his references were okay. John Champagne asked about the process, and if they got three bids. Mr. Roznovsky said this project was publicly bid and there were two bids submitted, with a big disparity \$180,000 versus \$320,000. John Champagne said after they put in all the costs, the other bid that seemed out of sight is getting closer and closer. Mr. Roznovsky said it won't get all the way there, but yes. John Champagne said there is a trend here. Mr. Roznovsky said the other contractor's price was high, but it was a contractor that they knew and had worked with before, and the issues that they are having with this one he did not think they would be the same. Rebecca Huss asked what the bonding covers and would it cover the gap between choice one and choice two. Mr. Roznovsky said it does, it covers 100%, and said he would have to go back and see what the 100% covered. Mr. Roznovsky said typically the first step is they will send in a manager to try and work with the existing crew that is out there and if that does not work, then the bonding company will get a crew out there. Rebecca Huss said the bonding company gets the job done, as opposed to just giving the City the money back. Mr. Roznovsky said he thought there were multiple ways, and with this being a grant project it is will be making sure the State is happy and the federal money and how that process goes will be a little different. Mr. Roznovsky said tomorrow will be the tail tell on what is going to be in the next call to the grant administrator to go over what the next step is. Rebecca Huss said they could actually get the project done by a better company for a lower price. Mr. Roznovsky said without knowing that company, it is hard to say, but the project will get done. Mayor Countryman said the bonding company will designate who the City goes with or are they going to suggest and then the City does their own vetting, or how does that work. Mr. Roznovsky said he did not know, and the reason is with the grant piece everything is a little bit different. Mr. Roznovsky said once they get through tomorrow and the contractor says he is not coming back, then the first phone call will be to the grant administrator. Rebecca Huss asked if they have to

use a bonding company then presumable the contractor will be knocked out of any grant process in the future. Mr. Roznovsky said he would hope so. Mr. Roznovsky said it is not just this project, he is having issues with other projects, so it is kind of a universal problem, not just with the City of Montgomery.

Mr. Roznovsky said they have a change order that is on the agenda, and stated that this contract does have liquidated damages in the amount of \$250 per day and those started on January 29, 2019.

Mr. Roznovsky reported that they are still working with FEMA regarding Atkins Creek, and we have a meeting scheduled for Thursday, with the last update being the project is in the environmental review stage since February 7, 2019. Mr. Roznovsky said FEMA had advised that this would all be done by the first of February and the City would have the funding. Mr. Roznovsky said he expects to get the GLO contract this week from the State.

Mr. Roznovsky said they received the plan review for Heritage Seniors yesterday for Phase III, Heritage Apartments. John Champagne said he was going from memory and said he thought there were 160 units with 80 units on the ground floor, and they plan on having 80 units by the end of summer.

Mr. Roznovsky said the public lines next to CVS are complete and they are just waiting for the final paperwork, and at the next meeting they will have them officially accepted. Mr. Roznovsky stated that Lake Creek Village is still outstanding for the culverts because they are waiting for the weather to clear up to complete those.

Mr. Roznovsky advised the Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District recently reached a settlement with the City of Conroe and other large volume groundwater users. Mr. Roznovsky said the final outcome is still to be determined but it appears that the 30% reduction rule for 2009 demand is going away. Mr. Roznovsky said they have not officially published new rules and adopted new rules, but it appears the 30% reduction they took from the City's 2009 usage will be coming back to the City. Mr. Roznovsky said as they know more they will keep the City updated.

Rebecca Huss said from a practical standpoint the City should operate as if they are under the same 30% reduction rule, since they made it last year, they should try and make it again this year. Mr. Roznovsky said they got additional permit on the Catahoula so they could have that capacity and this just helps to give a little more cushion and flexibility with the wells. Rebecca Huss said it will be nice to have cooler water for the summer.

Financial Report - Mr. Yates presented the Financial Report to City Council. Mr. Yates H. advised the following balances: General Fund \$1,304,868, Construction Fund \$2,967,087, Debt Service Fund has \$60,000, even though the report shows \$640,000, they just made the semi-annual payments, the Utility Fund has \$754,987 for a total cash reserve of \$6,417,562. Mr. Yates said the General Fund has a surplus of revenues over expenditures of \$282,504, and there was a \$104,000 payment to Kroger this past month. Mr. Yates said there was also the quarterly sales tax return of \$289,000. Mr. Yates said the Montgomery EDC has a surplus of revenues over expenditures of \$118,000, and the Utility Fund has a negative \$7,307, but they are making two total annual transfer payments this past month so that should go back up pretty quickly. Mr. Yates said he met with Mrs. Branco, Financial Consultant, today and they are going to change and invest our funds more in TexPool rather than the checking accounts because on the report on the investments it shows \$0.00, but said they are getting interest on those accounts it is just the third decimal point, and TexPool is paying about 2.3% interest now. Rebecca Huss said they are money market accounts so Ms. Branco can move it back and forth with five minutes notice. Jon Bickford said they need to get going on that interest.

Rebecca Huss asked about the General Fund, the sales tax in lieu of the ad valorem tax, just looking at that number she was noticing that they don't have anything in that account and it has been a big drag in our year-to-date numbers. Rebecca Huss said it was just about the Sales Tax — Other line, which she assumed was the regular sales tax. Mr. Yates said Mrs. Branco has not been placing the sales tax into the in lieu of ad valorem tax line item, she has been putting everything into the sales tax other and nothing into the ad valorem tax, and that is the ½ of a percent that needs to go into that column, which they need to take out of the 14600-sales tax and then 14600.1 is the Sales Tax ILO Ad Valorem. Mr. Yates said there is that split that needs to happen that she is probably not doing either. Rebecca Huss said instead of \$105,000 the intake would be roughly \$30,000 in the 14600.1 for January 2019. Mr. Yates said it would be more like \$40,000. Rebecca Huss said she was trying to figure out if we were above or below our year-to-date estimates, because the whole year-to-date is not tracking and it is just a lump sum, and shows that we are \$655,000 under budget year-to-date on sales tax. Mr. Yates said it is not that much, the expected amount

for this period is \$584,000 and our total for the year is \$2.2 million so we are \$600,000 or \$700,000 under our projection.

Jon Bickford moved to accept the Departmental Reports as presented. John Champagne seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

4. Consideration and possible action regarding and Encroachment and Maintenance Agreement between the City and Samdana Investments, L.P. regarding placing a dumpster within a storm drainage easement.

Mr. Roznovsky advised this is for the proposed donut shop, which has an existing storm sewer line that crosses their tract of land that drains from Butler Street to SH 105. Mr. Roznovsky said the property owner is relocating and proposing an easement, so it is allowed to be there and drain, and part of that is the need to encroach the easement with a dumpster enclosure in the back and also pavement on top as shown. Mr. Roznovsky said this is not in conflict and the agreement covers what happens should the City have to make repairs to the line. Jon Bickford asked if this would be permanent and not just for construction purposes. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct, it would be permanent and their plat includes a permanent storm sewer easement, and with that they want to encroach the easement they are platting.

Rebecca Huss said Butler Street is higher than SH 105. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct. Rebecca Huss asked if he was sure. Mr. Roznovsky said he was pretty certain that is draining from Butler Street and goes into the underground storm sewer at SH 105 then goes out by Brookshire Bros. Rebecca Huss said this was not just an easement for the dumpster, this is an easement for pavement. Mr. Roznovsky said the encroachment is for the dumpster, so historically the pavement has not been included with all the previous encroachment agreements. Rebecca Huss said she thought they were doing a drive through, and asked if they were going to have to concrete over the top. Mr. Roznovsky said the paving is being proposed along with the dumpster.

Jon Bickford asked who was responsible if the City has to tear up the concrete to do repair work; do they understand the owner will be responsible for the repair of the concrete. Mr. Foerster said they understand that and said it should be in the document that he wrote a month or so ago. Rebecca Huss asked if they also have to do a variance in terms of vegetation and asked if this was getting right up to the property line. Mr. Roznovsky said it was getting up to the property line and with the property being in the Historic District, they will need to go through that process. Rebecca Huss said this action seems highly premature. Mr. Roznovsky said he thinks it is a piece of the process.

Mr. Roznovsky said they don't have the vegetative buffer since it is commercial abutting commercial and they have the 10-foot building line. Rebecca Huss asked to confirm that they would not need a variance. Mr. Roznovsky said they received a variance to have the 10-foot building line to begin with, but he did not recall the variance for the dumpster itself. Mr. Roznovsky said they are not ready for plan approval at this time, they still need to go before the Planning and Zoning Commission since they are in the Historic District. Mr. Roznovsky said the last time they reviewed plans for them was back in November 2018. Mr. Roznovsky said they will have to go through a second step to get the placement of the building line.

Jon Bickford said it looks like the inlets are draining most of the parking lot onto Butler Street. Mr. Roznovsky said it was his understanding that all the drainage would be going to SH 105. Rebecca Huss said it looks like it outlets onto Butler Street. Jon Bickford said it looks like it all dumps onto Butler Street and the question is whether all that water will cause a problem, but he guessed that someone has looked at that. Mr. Roznovsky said yes there are proposed inlets onto that line, but his recollection was that it was not going onto Butler Street, but he will double check the flow lines. Rebecca Huss said Jon Bickford is correct, the red lines show the flow going to Butler Street. Mr. Roznovsky said he sees what they are describing, and said there is a line that is existing that is not highlighted, so between where the redline ends there is an existing 18-inch storm sewer connecting those two at SH 105. Mr. Roznovsky said the reason it is not highlighted in red is because it is not proposed. Mr. Roznovsky said the existing line is underneath the red dash lines. Jon Bickford said it looks like it is draining in two places.

John Champagne asked Mr. Roznovsky if his recommendation was to approve the encroachment agreement. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct. John Champagne asked if Mr. Yates was also a part of the recommendation. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct.

John Champagne moved to approve the Encroachment Agreement to allow the construction of a dumpster and pavement within the proposed changed easement as presented. Jon Bickford seconded the motion.

<u>Discussion</u>: Jon Bickford asked if "EX 18-inch STM" means existing storm sewer line. Jon Bickford stated that what it looks like is that there is an existing pipe coming across Butler Street and hooking into the red line and then goes over to SH 105, so there is no dumping of water onto SH 105. Rebecca Huss said there is not a pipe on Butler Street so it must be an open ditch. Mr. Roznovsky said it is an open ditch on Butler Street, but there is an existing line close to where the

little bridge was located that is headed toward SH 105, and that will be relocated where it is shown with the red line.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

5. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS AMENDING THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 98, "ZONING," FOR THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF A 2.186 ACRE TRACT OF PROPERTY AND A .0475 ACRE TRACT OF PROPERTY, LOCATED AT 1062 CLEPPER STREET IN MONTGOMERY FROM A "R-1" SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT TO A "B' COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE. (Ward Property - Tabled at the February 12, 2019 Meeting)

Mr. Yates advised the only information he had to add was they received a letter today from Tony and Rebecca Noreiga stating the potential to purchase the Clepper Street property for use as an eclectic, relaxing, unique style Treasure & Art business. Jon Bickford asked if there were any photos received. Jon Bickford said at the last meeting they said they would like to get an idea of what is going to be there not just that there is interest in the property.

John Champagne asked Mr. Foerster if a letter of intent was appropriate. Mr. Foerster said the letter of intent would be appropriate, but his is not what we have here because it is very vague. John Champagne said he was not referring to this letter, he was referring to the legality of acquiring a letter of intent or any other assurance from the potential buyer that what they say they are going to do, and they would do it. Mr. Foerster responded to the question regarding City Council's approval of the change in zoning being predicated on written intent of use, and said he did not see a problem with doing that. John Champagne said this request, as far as he was concerned, there is no commitment in the letter.

Rebecca Huss said she felt the only way forward is either for someone to come with a very specific drawing, which she knows is difficult if they do not own the property, and it would be difficult to purchase the property without the confidence that City Council would change the zoning, or they look at putting the property in a light commercial as basically establishing a different zoning designation to give a lower commercial impact that would be consistent with our goals for the

Historic District so there is less risk in rezoning something. Jon Bickford said he thought the time to not do something is before you commit yourself and you can't undo it. Rebecca Huss said the question is do they take affirmative action to move forward and establish another category of zoning.

Mr. Ward said he had two people back out of a deal because they said they did not want to get precommitted to the City with a design and everything and then later have to change it and the City give them a problem. Mr. Ward said he had two others backed out because the process is taking way too long.

John Champagne said he has done letters of intent in the past and he does not propose that the proposed buyers invest a lot of money in design or anything like that, it would just be that they would give an idea of what they plan on doing, the scope, and whatever commitment they could be legally bound to do that exact proposal. Mr. Foerster said they have got to be very careful, and said he would feel more comfortable if this was a request to include this property into the Historic District because you have some additional qualifiers. Mr. Foerster said with the Historic District you have certain protections, the type of construction that is going to be placed in there, and you can have more assurance of what is going to be placed there, and the appearance and function. Mr. Yates said he would not include the function, but he would say the appearance. Mr. Yates said once you rezone the property, you are zoning it for particular types of businesses. John Champagne said he could make a chop shop appear there. Jon Bickford said once you change it to commercial that is it. Rebecca Huss said they used to have a light industrial use, and she is saying they establish another category. Jon Bickford said they can't do that tonight. Rebecca Huss said she was talking about going forward they take action to establish a new type of land use called historic commercial and say the permitted uses would be specific things that would not include a chop shop, but would have art galleries, antique shops, restaurants, libraries, etc., then someone could purchase the property knowing those uses were permitted.

John Champagne asked if there was latitude in the historic zoning that would allow us to do some of the things that are being mentioned. Mr. Foerster said he would have to go back and look at the information to answer that question. Mr. Yates said we do not have the historic zoning at this time, but if you wanted to prepare an ordinance it could be done.

John Champagne moved to deny the ordinance presented tonight regarding the Ward property rezoning as presented. Jon Bickford seconded the motion.

<u>Discussion:</u> Jon Bickford said he did not think they had any options because they don't have another thing they can change the property to. John Champagne said they are stuck and they have to unstick.

Rebecca Huss asked if Mr. Yates could put into motion the idea of asking the Planning and Zoning Commission to look at adding another category to our Zoning Land Uses. Mr. Yates said yes, especially if he can get approval from City Council do that. John Champagne said he could make it part of his motion. Mr. Yates said City Council could just give him direction after the motion. Mr. Yates said it will take quite a bit of time for the process, so he just wanted to make sure. Mr. Foerster said he concurred with what City Council was doing and said he was thinking that with the Comprehensive Plan Meeting scheduled for Thursday night, this might be something to get feedback from our consultant and members of the audience. John Champagne said as usual, that is a good idea. Mr. Yates said there is also neighborhood zoning where they only allow office buildings or something light in traffic and noise, and maybe could be used on Lone Star Parkway in the future, where commercial abuts a large residential area, such as across the street or the corner of Lone Star Parkway and SH 105 west, which is an area that is zoned commercial and could have a store, dentist office or an accountant office is another option.

Mr. Foerster advised as City Council moves forward with zoning and changes in zoning, and said he was really pleased to see City Council doing this, the Comprehensive Plan is really the dictating factor that helps you arrive at what is the proper use of various pieces of property in the City. Mr. Foerster said that proposal was passed about 20 years ago, and the City has changed from a little country town they had 20 years ago to what it has become today. Mr. Foerster said these are questions that he thinks are very important to ask and get public input on as they go forward with the Comprehensive Plan and the future development of the City. Mayor Countryman said she agreed with Mr. Foerster.

The motion carried with 4-aye votes and 1-nay vote by T.J. Wilkerson. (4-1)

6. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

AMENDING THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 98,

"ZONING," FOR THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF AN APPROXIMATELY 2.00 ACRE

TRACT OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2560 LONE STAR PARKWAY IN MONTGOMERY

FROM AN "ID" INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT TO "B" COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT, AND AN APPROXIMATELY 5.00 ACRE TRACT OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2580 LONE STAR PARKWAY IN MONTGOMERY FROM AN "ID" INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT TO A "R-2" MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE. (Jacobs Property)

Mr. Jacobs presented additional handouts with a summary of his property that he had discussed with City Council a couple weeks ago, and the his process of getting in touch with his neighbors. Mr. Jacobs included letters from various property owners supporting his rezone effort. Mr. Jacobs included the location of the R2 area in the back and shows the distance from Lone Star Parkway; he said they can envision the location being a very private and secure area for their tenants. Mr. Jacobs said the second map shows the ownership of various tracts in the area they had contacted.

Rebecca Huss asked what Mr. Jacobs envisioned the commercial reserve area looking like when it is built out and the timing. Mr. Jacobs said it is one of the original areas of the corridor enhancement zone, so whatever is going to be located there will have some décor to it. Mr. Jacobs said the uses out there have a lot of potential for businesses, retail and maybe a nursery house, like the Antique Rose Emporium. Mr. Jacobs said he expected they would probably have some business orientation in that area and some different ideas that he would bring back in the near future. Mr. Jacobs said he spoke to someone this week that wants to create his personal store with high dollar automobiles with a store front on it, and then a long building in the back. Mr. Jacobs said with the list of permitted uses that are in place in the industrial zone, he would submit it might be easier to identify the things that they don't want there, rather than having a constant amended list. Mr. Jacobs said hardly anything on that list is anything that he envisioned being what he would want out there.

Rebecca Huss said once you sell property it is out of your hands, so while they have good stewards and people who care about Montgomery, once it is sold you do not necessarily have control over where it goes after that. Rebecca Huss asked if the residences were going to be single story or two story. Mr. Jacobs said it would be a combination and said Mr. Glockzin is here and is the one that will be doing the apartments. Mr. Glockzin said this would be a housing development; about 1/3 of it will be two story and 2/3 would be single story. Rebecca Huss asked if there would be 96 parking spots, because she thought that when they were looking at the Blazer development they had to come in for a variance because it has two parking spots per unit. Mr. Glockzin said they

have enough parking spots. Rebecca Huss asked if they would have covered parking. Mr. Glockzin said no, they would not be covered.

Jon Bickford said to the best of his knowledge, we have roughly 625 homes in the City right now; within a few months they will have 312 apartments, so basically 50% of the dwellings in the City will be apartments. Jon Bickford said personally he is not getting it, and he is not sure that the people that have bought homes in Montgomery want to fill the City with apartments. Jon Bickford said there is commercial property here already that he can't stop, but personally he does not want any more of it. Jon Bickford said he does not feel it makes sense to create more commercial property for more apartments. Mr. Jacobs said during 2016-2018 the number of apartments that have been built in Montgomery County is 4,676 individual units. Jon Bickford said the City of Montgomery would have 10%. Mr. Jacobs said the affordable apartments, income limited, which Mr. Glockzin is doing, is not subsidized rent; you have to have a job, and go through the background checks. Mr. Jacobs said in Montgomery County during the last three years, out of the 4,676 apartment units, only 80 of them were approved as income restricted projects, which is where your working people have got to live. Mr. Jacobs said Mr. Glockzin has a history of doing projects all through Texas, and if you look at the dates of them, almost every town where he has built he has been invited back to build a second phase of the project. Mr. Jacobs said he has no intention of selling a second phase in Montgomery because he hopes they can work together and do a lot of different things out there. Mr. Jacobs said regarding this particular project, the distance from the street makes it private and close to shopping on Lone Star Parkway; they are all employed and have vehicles so they can get to where they need to go.

Tom Cronin said he understood where Jon Bickford was coming from, but there is a shortage of places for people that work downtown, in restaurants, service industries and things like that, so it sounds like they vet the residents well. Tom Cronin said he really sees a need for something like this, because if you drive to Conroe that costs money, and apartments there are expensive. Jon Bickford said he was not saying no to apartments, what he is saying is there is a lot of commercial property available in the City today, and to make more commercial property, where people can put in apartments, so they can still have all that other commercial property to build more apartments. Rebecca Huss said they can only put apartments in R2 zoned areas since they did away with the cumulative zoning. Jon Bickford said his point is we are adding more and we are not taking away, so where does that stop. Jon Bickford said the property was purchased in the zoning that it was in when it was purchased. Mr. Jacobs said at the time he purchased his property it was cumulative zoning. Rebecca Huss said, as Tom Cronin stated, the demand for workers is high so there is

definitely a need for the City to look at ways to provide options for people to live affordably, close to work.

Mayor Countryman said she had a call from a business owner last night at 9:30 p.m. to discuss the lack of help that they have here, and now with the new CVS Store, Bubble King and the other places coming in he is now competing for what was a small workforce to an even smaller workforce. Mayor Countryman said the caller advised it would be advantageous to have more affordable housing and in his opinion, the high school kids do not want to work, so he has to go to the adult level and they are not going to come from Conroe. Jon Bickford said they need to work that out in their head, because if they go down that path, where will they be in 20 years. Mayor Countryman said she understood, she felt they had to take these individually, and just because we say yes to this it does not mean we will say yes to the next one. Jon Bickford said you can't deny a development in R2 that wants to build apartments, because it is zoned that way. Mr. Jacobs said City Council approved the second phase of Heritage last year and turned him down. Jon Bickford said their property did not need to be rezoned.

Rebecca Huss said when you are looking at what the City looks like and Lone Star Parkway is eventually going to become SH 105, and in order to divert heavy truck traffic onto that road it has to become a TxDOT road or an official road, and do we want it to be like driving through an industrial zone or do we want it to be a commercial zone, built to the corridor enhancement standards. Rebecca Huss said she would rather have the City represented by something that has a potential of being attractively commercial rather than industrial. John Champagne said the area does not have to stay industrial and said he would be very receptive to a residential designation. John Champagne said all these apartments are beautiful for the first 5, 10, 15 years, and he will challenge anyone to tell him that the level of crime, abuse of anything that is not conducive to good society takes place more in an apartment complex than it does in a residential area. John Champagne said he does not know how long Mr. Glockzin is going to stay around to manage the property. John Champagne said the reason that Heritage got another 80 units is because it is over there and not spread out all over the City. John Champagne said Jon Bickford made the point that almost half the residents in this City live in apartments. John Champagne asked how much is enough? John Champagne said if they think a Burger King or McDonald's employee or any of the low end employees are going to rent an apartment, think again, maybe two or three of them together will rent an apartment, which is a whole other topic. John Champagne stated the workforce is not a function of where they live and rather a function of not wanting to work. Mayor Countryman said the businesses in the City are all struggling. John Champagne said everyone in this City if

they don't drive an hour to work they are in the minority. Mayor Countryman said the people that are driving an hour to work are not coming in to the City to work. Jon Bickford said if they do build out the industrial area and there were some high wage paying jobs, those people would move here and buy homes.

John Champagne asked what percentage of apartments would be acceptable. Mayor Countryman said she did not have a percentage in mind, but stated what she did see and what she hears, because she talks to a lot of business owners here, is there is a lack of people to work. Mayor Countryman said we have business owners killing themselves to make up for the lack of labor force. Jon Bickford said if they got in a software development business, he would go to work selling for them in heartbeat, but if you are going to build a Burger King they are not going to come because they can't get staff to work. Mayor Countryman said they seem to be getting a lot of fast food places because those are easy, and the software companies are not banging down the door.

T.J. Wilkerson moved to adopt the ordinance as presented and rezone the property located at 2560 Lone Star Parkway from "ID" Industrial "B" Commercial, and the property at 2580 Lone Star Parkway from "ID" Industrial to "R-2" Multi-Family. Tom Cronin seconded the motion, the motion passed with the following vote: 3-Ayes and 2-Nays (3-2)

Aye - T.J. Wilkerson

Nay – John Champagne

Aye - Tom Cronin

Nay – Jon Bickford

Aye – Rebecca Huss

7. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERTY, TEXAS REGARDING STAR OF TEXAS HOUSING LTD AT LONE STAR PARKWAY FOR SUPPORT AND LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISION FUNDING.

Mr. Yates advised this was a request to place an unknown number of senior housing units on the property adjacent to the existing Montgomery County housing project behind the Lone Star Community Center off Lone Star Parkway. Mr. Yates said the Resolution provides extra points for the very competitive tax credit granting. Mr. Yates said the Star of Texas owner has requested \$2,000 worth of credit for water taps, in order to help with their application. Mr. Yates said in previous years MEDC has provided the \$2,000 payment on the water taps.

Mr. Foerster said the way the Resolution is written, it is saying the City is committed to spend some

amount of money. Mr. Yates said the way that he understood it, whether it was \$250 or \$2,000 it

is financial support for the project, which gets them extra points. Mr. Foerster asked if there was a

precedent for the City paying this, or is it a precedent for MEDC Mr. Foerster said as a City they

have to be careful that they are not making gifts for which there is no public benefit, or for which

the City Council has not declared there is a public benefit for making that donation. Mr. Foerster

said while he is not opposed to giving money for what this City Council believes to be a definite

public benefit, the question that you have to ask yourself, with this Resolution, is whether there is

a public benefit, which he was not saying there is or is not, and if so, that needs to be reflected in

the minutes.

Rebecca Huss asked if the housing units are exempt from State or Local property taxes. Mr.

Glockzin said no. Rebecca Huss asked what the estimated taxable value would be after construction

is completed. Mr. Glockzin said it would be about \$5 million dollars. Rebecca Huss said \$5 million

dollars would be about \$20,000 per year in operation and maintenance (O&M) taxes. Mr. Foerster

said, if the City Council chooses to, it could be a benefit or incentive. Rebecca Huss said that could

be the quantitative benefit to the City from the project. Rebecca Huss said that if this project should

be built out per Mr. Glockzin's expectations, the City would receive approximately \$20,000 per

year in O&M tax revenue.

Jon Bickford asked if Mr. Glockzin has a plan for this project, and said he did not understand the

wording in the agenda item "unknown" number of housing units. Mr. Glockzin said there will be

48 units. Rebecca Huss said anytime they go to Texas Department of Housing and Community

Affairs to get the tax credits they need a Resolution of support from the City, which they did last

year. T.J. Wilkerson asked how many of those apartments are behind Lone Star Community

Center. Mr. Jacobs said there were less than 20 units.

Rebecca Huss moved to approve the Resolution, as presented, pending the changes to include the

48 units, with the City providing a \$2,000 credits toward the tap fees. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the

motion, the motion carried with the following vote: 3-Ayes and 2-Nays (3-2)

Aye – T.J. Wilkerson

Nay – John Champagne

Aye – Tom Cronin

Nay – Jon Bickford

Aye – Rebecca Huss

Mr. Glockzin asked if he could get the Resolution executed this evening. Mr. Foerster advised that he would make the amendments, and possibly have the Resolution prepared in the morning. Mr. Glockzin will forward the Resolution document to the City Secretary, who will forward to the City Attorney for revision, and then it will be executed in the morning.

8. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS CONSOLIDATING INTO ONE CITY ORDINANCE THE NFPA 70® 2017 NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE AND THE 2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODES, AS AMNEDED, TO ALL RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS; AMENDING RELATED SECTIONS THE INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, SPECIFIC OF INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE AND NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE; DESIGNATING A CITY BUILDING OFFICIAL; PROVIDING FOR INSPECTION ACTIVITIES BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED \$500 FOR VIOLATION THEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; PROVIDING A CLAUSE REPEALING THE CITY CODE REGARDING CITY BUILDING AND ELECTRIC CODES AS AMENDED; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE ON OR AFTER PUBLICATION AS PROVIDED BY LAW.

Mr. Rick Hanna, City Building Inspector, advised this is to request updating the new version of the Codes. Mr. Hanna said he works for a couple other cities and they have already adopted these Codes. Mr. Hanna said basically what happens is new technology and methods come along, the Codes are modified, and the problem they are having now is the State agencies that license plumbers and electricians, H-VAC technicians adopt a newer version of the Codes that sometimes causes a conflict when they have an older version versus what the licensees have to follow.

Rebecca Huss asked if this would make it easier for the trades instead of harder. Mr. Hanna said they have to take continuing education classes where they are briefed on the changes in the Codes. Mr. Hanna said one item they have had problems with is that wiring for garages and exterior circuits all have to be on the same circuit, where they used to be separate, so there are major changes. Mr. Hanna said one of the items that is included is the issue of tiny houses, which he is not saying that they want to have those here, but with the current Code they don't have anything to refer to. Rebecca Huss said they have offices downtown that are tiny houses. Mr. Hanna said those were built as residential homes and moved in to be commercial properties and they don't meet some of

the requirements, so they had a lot of work to get them up to commercial standards, egress and fire signs, etc. Tom Cronin asked if the tiny homes would be considered portable buildings. Mr. Hanna said they can move them around. Tom Cronin said he was asking because he used to sell portable buildings, and he was wondering when those went in. Mr. Hanna said the owner came to City Council and got approved to put some buildings on the property and moved them in without any inspections, so they had to inspect them after the fact and get them upgraded to meet commercial requirements.

Mr. Yates said the Building Committee reviewed the information. Mr. Hanna advised the Building Review Committee is made up with a plumber, developer, electrician and himself.

Mr. Foerster said this project was worked on by Mr. Hanna and Dave McCorquodale, and this ordinance was drafted by Dave McCorquodale. Mr. Foerster said he has reviewed the ordinance and he is happy to sign off on it. Mr. Foerster said Dave McCorquodale did a good job on the ordinance. Mr. Hanna said in the past they required everything in the service panel to be copper wiring for safety, and what this will allow is if they are running a sub-feed from the main panel in a residence to a garage, that can be done underground with aluminum service.

Jon Bickford moved to accept the newest changes as presented to the City Codes and adopt the ordinance. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

9. Consideration and possible action regarding Change Order No. 1 for the Water and Drainage Improvements on Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Drive and Baja Road Project.

Mr. Roznovsky presented the information to City Council advising the total for Change Order No. 1 for the project is \$9,056.84, which also includes 10 additional days to the contract for impact from rain from December 1, 2018 through February 9, 2019. Mr. Roznovsky said the approval of the new amount is \$188,000 for the contract and the end date is February 8, 2019.

Rebecca Huss said she was confused as to why they are giving them more money when they are not even on the job and it looks like we are going after their bonding company. Mr. Roznovsky said there are still legitimate items that they should get paid for when they are completed, for example the traffic control, if they do not complete the project they don't get paid for the full \$2,800 in traffic control. Mayor Countryman said it was her understanding there was not much traffic control, and asked if they have validation that there was actually traffic control. Mayor Countryman

said she has had several telephone calls stating there was no traffic control, and said she thought she had called Mr. Roznovsky regarding that, as well. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct, and said they have to prove that they are actually using traffic control and if they do not use, they do not get paid for it. Mayor Countryman said if they are not on site, she guessed they were not using it. Mr. Roznovsky said after this is approved it also has to go to the State and get approved. Mr. Roznovsky said they are not authorizing to pay for these items, but if the contractor completes these items then he is paid.

Jon Bickford asked if we are having to approve this in order to get funding from the State. Mr. Roznovsky said part of the process of getting this approved is the engineer signs, City signs and the State signs, and then the contractor signs, then after all that approval has gone through those items can be paid upon completion. Jon Bickford asked who is paying the funds. Mr. Roznovsky said it is paid by the State and is all from the grant. Jon Bickford said they are just making provisions to have budget available to pay the contractor, so they should take this action.

John Champagne moved to approve the Change Order No. 1 for the Baja Water and Drainage Project. Jon Bickford seconded the motion.

<u>Discussion:</u> T.J. Wilkerson asked if this was the same contractor working on MLK and Baja. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct. Rebecca Huss said to make it clear that 1) the traffic control will not be paid in any case unless there is proof that they are actually controlling traffic. Jon Bickford stated that nothing will get paid for unless the work is done. Mayor Countryman said they just have to approve the funds now.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

10. Consideration and possible action regarding Amendment No. 1 to Engineering Services Agreement with Jones and Carter regarding Buffalo Springs Drive Bridge Embankment Rehabilitation Project.

(Tabled at the February 12, 2019 Meeting)

Mr. Yates advised this item was regarding the increase of engineering fees requested by Jones and Carter. Mr. Yates said the total contract increase is \$39,500 of which \$7,255.69 is the City's share after you deduct the FEMA payment. John Champagne asked if the contract increase was in line with the contract between the City of Montgomery and Jones and Carter. Mr. Yates said that was correct. John Champagne asked if there was a stipulation if, for whatever reason, an increase in

engineering costs is absorbed by Jones and Carter and can pass along to the City of Montgomery. Mr. Yates said if they request that, yes. Rebecca Huss said it was really a fixed price contract, based on the value of the bridge. Mr. Yates said that was correct.

John Champagne asked for the reason for the increase. Mr. Roznovsky said they were correct, Jones and Carter's contract is a lump sum contract for the Bridge Project, and this was a request due to the additional time that the contractor was on the job, which was 180 percent of the original time. Rebecca Huss said the liquidated damages were only for 25 days, so they are asking for \$39,000 for 25 extra days. Mr. Roznovsky said it was \$21,000 for 100 days. Rebecca Huss said that was what they paid the contractor the extra days for, and said Jones and Carter are asking for more than \$1,000 per day. Mr. Roznovsky said there were multiple things that were in here being requested, it included the construction administration and inspection, pass through costs of testing expenses that were incurred and paid for by Jones and Carter to perform material testing on site. Mr. Roznovsky said the City did hold liquidated damages from the contractor, and when you assume that those liquidated damages were taken out of the City's share of the increase, it is a \$1,800 difference. Rebecca Huss said the liquidated damages belong to the tax payers not to Jones and Carter, and Jones and Carter did act on the City's behalf, but that was when they were acting as the City's Engineer, not as Jones and Carter the Contract Engineer who produced the Bridge. Rebecca Huss said this is where it gets to the question of which side of the wall Jones and Carter is working on, so when they are working for the City as the City's Engineer, that is when you negotiated on our behalf with the contractor for the liquidated damages, so you can't say you earned those liquidated damages dollars and put those against the dollars that you are asking for now. Mr. Roznovsky said he would disagree because all the time that was spent on the Bridge was billed to the Bridge Project on behalf of administering the contract for the Bridge. Mr. Roznovsky said part of the justification for liquidated damages is in showing the true impact to the City, which additional engineering is an impact to the City. Mr. Roznovsky said this is a request, and the reason for the request is because of the extended time they had to be out there to inspect the project.

John Champagne asked whether that was a result of weather. Mr. Roznovsky said it was due to the contractor and his faults. John Champagne asked who chose that contractor. Mr. Roznovsky said it was a recommendation by Jones and Carter.

Rebecca Huss said this is a fixed price contract and she is sorry that it came in over budget, but it has been three months and stated this is the taxpayer's money. John Champagne said he thinks we need to do a much better job of choosing contractors, personally. Mr. Roznovsky said this was

another grant, and as far as the timing, saying that it is three months, this is not a new item that is coming up, this is something that he has been discussing with City staff, and he had provided the initial numbers on November 30, 2018. Mr. Roznovsky said the attached memo details the reasons for that request and what was assumed approval for that change, which is then produced into an invoice and was then sent out to the State and FEMA, based on the approval of that. John Champagne said Mr. Roznovsky keeps bringing up FEMA, and asked if the contract was tied to FEMA, and were they bound to choose that contractor because of the FEMA participation. Mr. Roznovsky said this was another FEMA and Department of Agriculture Grant. John Champagne said he was trying to connect why the contractor was tied to these grants, and if choosing the contractor had anything to do with the fact that they were using Grants. Mr. Roznovsky said the fact that there was not enough reason to roll them and go to the next contractor, because of the grants. Rebecca Huss said out of the 481.5 hours of inspections, there was a comment at the last meeting about some of the inspections were done when they were not necessarily needing to be done, so she was wondering how much of that is on here, which is something they can't go back and audit. Rebecca Huss said her other question is what their profit margin is on this project. Mr. Roznovsky said it was nothing, this is covering our costs. Rebecca Huss asked if that included all of the engineering. Mr. Roznovsky said that was correct. Rebecca Huss asked how much of his bosses' overhead is included, extra hours, etc. Mr. Roznovsky said there was an hourly breakdown that shows what was spent based on the hourly rate versus what was compensated, and said this is not a grab at the end to try and make profit on a project, it is just trying to cover the costs. Mr. Roznovsky said he believes the cost is substantiated just due to the amount of time that was spent out at the project, and he thought everyone understands the frustrations with the FEMA project and the contractor and we experienced the same, and we are paying with the costs. Mr. Roznovsky said he understands with the contract the City is not obligated to pay the additional fund, which he is not trying to say that, it is a request for payment and a justification as to why they feel warranted to receive it. John Champagne said he knows Mr. Roznovsky and Jones and Carter well enough in general, and he would never think this is an unethical grab at the end of the project, which is not what this is about, in his mind.

Mr. Yates asked if there was any additional charges for redesigning work and work with FEMA on the changes. Mr. Roznovsky said that was within the contract amount and hourly portion with FEMA coordination and they are not requesting an increase in that budget, which is why the \$39,500 increase is \$10,000 less because of hourly expenses incurred, so the total increase is \$29,022.38.

Tom Cronin said he feels like there is a contracted price, and it would be a tough sell to go to the taxpayer or constituency and say we just spent and extra \$40,000 of your money because it was not anticipated that things would come up.

Tom Cronin moved to deny the request for the additional funds by Jones and Carter.

Mr. Roznovsky clarified that it was not \$40,000 from the City. Rebecca Huss said it was taxpayer money either way, whether it is FEMA or CDBG money, or from the City of Montgomery, it is still taxpayer money and is coming from somebody's taxes.

Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

11. <u>Consideration and possible action amending Contract with Jones and Carter regarding hourly rates</u> for work performed.

Mr. Roznovsky advised he had sent out an email today with additional information regarding the rates. Mr. Yates stated this is an annual adjustment that is considered in the contract with Jones and Carter. Mr. Foerster said the contract that was executed back in October 2014 calls for hourly rates to be subject to an annual revision in January of each year that the agreement is in force.

Jon Bickford asked if they were tied to a CPI or a percent, whichever less is. Mr. Foerster said it does not state that in the contract. Rebecca Huss asked if that was a unilateral increase not subject to an agreement. Mr. Foerster said it is always subject to an agreement because if City Council or Jones and Carter wants to terminate the contract they can, with seven days' notice, with or without cause. Mr. Foerster said that Mr. Roznovsky can advise the justification as to why the rates need to increase, one of which has to do with the recent promotion of Katherine Vu, who just passed her P.E. examination. City Council congratulated Katherine Vu.

John Champagne asked when was the last time the rate increase was done since the contract was adopted in 2014. Mr. Roznovsky said they do an annual revision, with the last time being 2017, for a 3% increase. Mr. Roznovsky said in 2018 the rates did not change, but the format and structure of the rates changed, adding additional categories, but this year there is a substantial change in the compensation and makeup that was detailed in the email. John Champagne said he has the utmost respect for Katherine Vu, and said that Mrs. Vu getting her professional classification, what value that brings to the City. Mr. Roznovsky said the reason the younger engineers are having more of

an increase on the list is because of the rule changes that allows engineers to get their tests passed and licenses quicker. Mr. Roznovsky said the benefit to the City is the more experience, the more professional she is, and she will be able to sign and seal documents in two years, but she is working her way to that position. John Champagne said technically this could increase Jones and Carter's production and overall lower the City's overall cost. Mr. Roznovsky said that it correct. Mrs. Vu said ideally the value is with the more experience that she has, the more efficient she is at her job and the more responsibility she is able to take on so there is less need for conversation necessarily between she and Mr. Roznovsky and she is able to handle things more on her own. Mrs. Vu said as she gets more experience it will lower the cost to the City on the salary that is charged.

Mr. Roznovsky said the increase for inspectors is zero percent, and Mr. Yates had stated \$85, the construction manager is at 4 percent increase and Katherine Vu is 12 percent and his increase was 5.5 percent. Rebecca Huss said the GIS operator is at 23 percent increase. Mr. Roznovsky said yes, but a lot of that is limited to billing, when he is producing a map, but all updates are done at the lump sum basis per the contract, which does not have as big an impact to the City. Mr. Roznovsky said what is built into the contract is three hours a month or so as they start filling all the private plans at the hourly rate, but everything else, maintenance and updates are at the flat fee of \$600.

Rebecca Huss asked if it costs the City \$2,500 for the preparation for a City Council Meeting report. Mr. Roznovsky said between the two meetings and both he and Katherine Vu going through all the agenda items, all the associated memos for each item, and the actual report, it varies per month. Rebecca Huss said that would be \$30,000 per year, equal to the value of a Lift Station pump. Mr. Roznovsky said they are more than willing to sit down and figure out how they can adjust their scope to fit whatever the goal is of the City and they are open to different types of models.

John Champagne asked if our rates are competitive with surrounding municipalities in terms of some of the problems Mr. LeFevre had evaluating the process and progression of developments. John Champagne said the City is taking a charge from Jones and Carter and passing it through to the customer, and the customer is saying they pay taxes and they feel this was something the City should provide, or maybe the City should absorb some of the costs. John Champagne asked how we are competing with surrounding municipalities. Mr. Yates said most cities these days are passing the costs through, and he felt that we are competitive with other cities.

Jon Bickford said in the world of engineering he did felt that a six percent increase, with not having one last year, was not unreasonable.

Jon Bickford moved to accept Jones and Carter's Annual Adjustment to their firm rates, effective as of today. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion.

<u>Discussion:</u> Mr. Roznovsky said as a note, their contract states it does not require separate approval so the rate went into effect January 1, 2019. Mr. Yates said he did not agree with that. Mr. Foerster said it was his understanding, according to the contract, every year in the past the City Administrator has reviewed and blessed any increases, but this year since City Council has raised the question, Mr. Yates would prefer that City Council bless the rates. Jon Bickford said he had a motion on the table.

The motion carried with 4-Ayes and 1-Nay by Tom Cronin. (4-1)

Rebecca Huss said she would like to look into John Champagne's comments that they do some management of the expenses, so the hourly rate is fine but perhaps not the hours themselves. Jon Bickford said the other thing they have to look at is whether the engineers have to be at every City Council meeting, and asked if they could come once a month instead of twice, which would save a ton of money.

12. <u>Consideration and possible action regarding a Request for Verification of Exemption Information</u>
(Homestead, Over 65 and Disability Exemptions) for Use on the 2019 Notices of Appraised Value and 2019 Assessment Rolls.

Mr. Yates presented the information to City Council, advising the City currently has the following exemptions:

Homestead – Zero
Over 65 years of age - \$20,000
Disabled - \$35,000

Rebecca Huss stated that last year she had recused herself from voting because her household gets the disabled veteran exemption. Mr. Foerster said what they could do is have the City Council vote on that one separately, so Rebecca Huss can vote on the others.

Jon Bickford said they already have the 65 years and disabled nearly maxed. Rebecca Huss said she thought that was just on the spreadsheet. Mayor Countryman said there was no cap on the exemption. Jon Bickford asked about some of the jurisdictions that show 0+1% or 0+2%. Mr. Yates said he did not know what that was regarding. T.J. Wilkerson said he was good with the exemptions the way they are. Rebecca Huss said the sum total for over 65 and disabled are very small amounts.

John Champagne said the exemptions effect 97 people and comes out to about \$70 per person for over 65 and \$100 for disability.

Jon Bickford moved to set the over 65 years of age to \$50,000 and disability at \$70,000, which would double them both. John Champagne seconded the motion.

<u>Discussion</u>: Mr. Foerster said he wanted to check the Tax Code to see if they have the flexibility to bump the rate that high. John Champagne said everyone else is doing it. Mr. Yates said the City of Conroe is at \$75,000. Jon Bickford said the median home price here is \$250,000. Mr. Foerster asked that City Council break out the motion into two motions, and separate disability for purposes of Rebecca Huss being able to recuse herself from voting.

Jon Bickford moved to set the Homestead Exemption at zero and over 65 years of age exemption at \$50,000. John Champagne seconded the motion, the motion carried with 4-Ayes and 1-Abstention by T.J. Wilkerson. (4-0-1)

Jon Bickford moved to set the disability exemption at \$70,000 from the \$35,000 it is today. Tom Cronin seconded the motion, the motion carried with 4-Ayes and 1-Abstention by Rebecca Huss. (4-0-1)

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations) of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.

- 13. Adjourn into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in the following:
 - a) Section 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)

Mayor Countryman adjourned into Closed Executive Session at 8:53 p.m.

Jon Bickford left the meeting at 9:47 p.m.

14. Reconvene into Open Session.

Mayor Countryman reconvened the meeting at 10:00 p.m.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

15. Consideration and possible action(s) if necessary on matter(s) deliberated in Closed Executive Session.

John Champagne moved to move forward to consider MUD 179 pending specific points yet to be negotiated and considered at another time. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion carried with 3-Aye Votes and 1-Nay Vote by Rebecca Huss. (3-1)

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.

There were no comments.

ADJOURNMENT

Rebecca Huss moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:01 p.m. Tom Cronin seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Submitted by: Susan Hensley, City Secretary	Date Approved: 03 112 19
WONT GOV	Mayor Sara Countryman